
ALAMEDA 
COUNTY 
FAIRGROUNDS 
PLEASANTON 

October 11, 2011 

Honorable Board of Supervisors 
County of Alameda 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 536 
Oakland, CA 94612 

RE:	 Review and Approval of the Alameda County Agricultural Fair Association's 
2012 Annual Budget. (The Fair Association is a Nonprofit Corporation that 
receives no financial support from the County of Alameda. Required 
submission to the State of California by November 30,2011) 

Honorable Board of Supervisors: 

Although the Fair Association receives no funding support from the County of Alameda, the 
Fair Association is once again pleased to submit its balanced 2012 Budget to the County 
for review and approval. The Fair Board formally adopted its 2012 BUdget at its October 
10, 2011, Board Meeting. Draft copies were distributed to County Staff and the County-Fair 
Ad Hoc Liaison Committee in October for advanced review and input. 

Thank you for your timely consideration, as the Fair Association's 2012 Annual Budget 
must be received by the State of California by November 30, 2011. 

POSITIVE RECOGNITION FOR THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
The Alameda County Fair continues to be ranked as one of the "Top 50 Fairs in America," 
and garners more industry awards than any other Fair facility. Last year, the Fair 
Association was notified that it was deemed the "Fastest GrOWing Fair in America." 

The Fair Association is honored to have been recognized with the prestigious Merrill Award 
this year from the Western Fairs Association. Only one such award is presented in the 
United States and Canada each year. This is the second time in three years that the Fair / 
Association has received this distinguished industry award. 

The Fair Association also received 27 First Place awards this year from the Western Fairs 
Association 0NFA.) WFA has more than 2,000 members in the United States and Canada, 
including some 157 Fairs. Overall, the Association garnered 47 industry achievement 
awards from WFA. Additionally, the Fair Association received the highest possible rating 
available from the California Department of Food and Agriculture, an "A+ Rating" in 
recognition of quality performance. The Fair Association is once again pleased to obtain 
ongoing positive recognition for the County of Alameda. 

1 

main925.426.7600 I fax925.426.7S99 I www.alamedacountyfair.com I 4501 Pleasanton Avenue I Pleasanton, California 94566 



100th ANNIVERSARY OF THE FAIRGROUNDS 
The first Alameda County Fair, which was held at the Fairgrounds in Pleasanton, took place 
on October 23-27,1912. With the 100lh Anniversary approaching quickly, the Fair 
Association is looking to develop events and activities to commemorate and celebrate this 
significant milestone. From a race track in 1858, to the inaugural Fair in 1912, to one of the 
most successful Fairgrounds in the Nation 100 years later, the Fair Association is 
committed to serving the residents of this great region as we build upon our rich history. 

PUBLIC USE OF THE FAIRGROUNDS 
More than 452,000 patrons attended the 17-day 2011 Annual Alameda County Fair, 
representing an 8% increase. Increase in this year's attendance was particularly pleasing 
since the Fair had fewer days of horse racing and the economy continues to struggle. The 
2011 Alameda County Fair was the highest attended Annual Fair in recent history. 

The Alameda County Fairgrounds has become one of the most active Fairgrounds on the 
West Coast, with more than 3 million persons participating in events at the Fairgrounds 
during 2011. The reported annual attendance at Fairgrounds in surrounding Counties 
include: Contra Costa 316,770; San Joaquin 407,873; San Mateo 1,131,000; Solano 
199,317; and Sonoma 1,373,272. [No statistics were reported this year for the Santa Clara 
County Fairgrounds.] The reported annual attendance at State Fairgrounds includes: 
California 1,132,651; Arizona 1,309,120; New Mexico 1,311,231; Oregon 548,321; and 
Washington 1,683,035. 

BALANCED 2012 BUDGET 
The Fair Association's 2012 Annual Budget requires no County funding, while continuing to 
improve and operate the County's 268 acre Fairgrounds. The Fair Association once again 
achieved a balanced Annual BUdget, in a troubled economy. The Fair Association remains 
pleased to be able to operate, maintain, and enhance the Alameda County Fairgrounds as 
a valuable community asset, without the use of County taxes or funds. 

~12BUDGETSUMMARY 

2012 Beginning Unrestricted Net Resources $ 2,449,423 

Operating Revenues $19,375,000 

Operating Expenses 18,975,000 

Net from Operations 400,000 

Sub Total $ 2,849,423 

Capital Expenditures 400,000 

Reduction in Long Term Debt 161,000 

Total Non-Operating Expenditures 561,000 

2012 Year-end Resources $ 2,288,423 

2 



The Association's 2012 Operating Revenues are conservatively projected at $19,375,000. 
The 2012 Operating Expenditures are targeted at $18,975,000 plus another $400,000 in 
Capital improvements. The 2012 BUdget projects $2,288,423 in Year-end Resources. 

In August of 2012 the Fair Association plans to reassess its eight months of fiscal 
performance. If the rental events early in the year, and the 2012 Annual Fair and Race 
Meet, are successful the Association hopes to take on additional Capital improvements. 

Due to sound fiscal management, the Fair Association has been able to enhance the 
Fairg rounds facil ity by more than $12.8 mi Ilion in Capital projects since 2001. For 2011 the 
Fair Association will be able to invest more than $475,000 into Capital improvements. 

By maintaining our "A+ Rating" from the State of California. Department of Food and 
Agriculture, we were successful in obtaining $272,000 in competitive grant support from 
Sacramento this year. The Fair Association uses such grant funds for Capital 
improvements to the Fairgrounds. Having our 2012 BUdget approved by the Board of 
Supervisors and forwarded to Sacramento by November 30,2011, is a key component in 
keeping our "A+ Rating" and allowing us to compete for these types of grant funds. 

Finance and Audit Committees 
We wish to acknowledge and thank the Fair Board Members that served on the Finance 
Committee this past year, and for their work in reviewing our 2012 Budget. 

Committee Co Chairs: Bill McCammon, Anthony Pegram 
Committee Members: Paul Banke, Jim McGrail, Dean Schenone. Harvey Smith 

and Eric Wente 

Compliments are also extended to the Fair Board Members who served on our 2010 Audit 
Committee. 

Committee Chair: Anthony Varni 
Committee Members: Paul Banke and Anthony Pegram 

The Fair Association is pleased that it remains in full compliance with the Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP.) Copies of our 2010 Independent Audit are 
provided to the County each year for review. The independent audit firm of Vaverink, Trine 
and Day completed our 2010 Audit. 

RECAP OF 2011 PERFORMANCE 
Several key milestones occurred in 2011 as the Fair Association continued to be a model 
operation in the West Coast Fair industry. Specifically, for 2011: 

•	 The Fair Association designed and constructed the "Alameda County Historical 
Monument" with donations from private parties. 

•	 Produced by Huell Houser, a 30-minute television show promoted the Alameda 
County Fair on public television around California. 
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•	 The 2011 Alameda County Fair became the first Fair in America to be "Trended on 
Twitter" - this meant that the Fair was a Top 10 Items discussed on Twitter for a 
given day. 

•	 The Twitter hype came from the Fair creating the "Largest Commercially Available 
Hamburger in the World" at 770 pounds. Significant free publicity was generated by 
this event during the 2011 Fair. 

•	 More than $475,000 was invested this year in Capital upgrades at the Fairgrounds. 
•	 Obtained some $272,000 in competitive funding assistance from Sacramento. 
•	 Year-End Resources for 2011 are projected at $2,449,423. 
•	 Completed our third year as the horse racing industry's Primary Auxiliary Training 

Facility in Northern California. 
•	 For the third year obtained an additional weekend of horse racing in concert with the 

Annual Fair. 
•	 Expanded our formal Volunteer Program, which generated 7,373 volunteer hours. 
•	 Continued with our "tree reforestation" program across the Fairgrounds. 
•	 Fairs throughout the Western United States continue to seek out policies and best 

practices of our Fair Association to enhance their operations. 

EXPANDING RELATIONSHIPS 
Some 4,228 persons submitted 16,938 Competitive Exhibit Entries (a 5% increase.) The 
Fair Association paid $232,000 in cash awards to these competitive exhibitors. The Junior 
Livestock Auction raised more than $567,231 for area youth (a 15% increase.) School 
children also designed, painted and displayed their projects as part of the Fair's "School 
Board Art Program." 

The 2011 Fair included three weekend festivals, "Fiesta Hispania," "Spice of India," and 
"Americana Music." Each drew Fair attendees from prominent cultures in the region. The 
Bay Area Blues Society again coordinated entertainment at the Fair on the Fourth of July. 

This was the twelfth year for our "Law Enforcement Fair to Youth" program. This unique 
program provides every police agency in the County of Alameda with the opportunity to 
present a number of free Fair admission tickets to youths who are making positive 
contributions to their respective communities. 

The Association's Employment Outreach Program again targeted groups identified by the 
County's Human Resource Services Department. In addition to Job Fairs and community 
events, we reached out to all high schools in Alameda County, all Chambers of Commerce 
(including the ethnic Chambers) and other organizations as identified by the County. We 
also posted hiring information at the following Websites: EDD., CALWORKs, East Bay 
Works, etc. The Fair Association continues to use its self-produced employee recruitment 
CD and brochure. This CD and brochure is used at Job Fairs and Schools around the 
County of Alameda. 

This was the ninth year that we operated an employee van shuttle program from the 
Pleasanton BART Station to the Fairgrounds. The van shuttle program is a vital 
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component of our summer employment outreach efforts. We appreciate our working 
relationships with BART, WHEELS and ACE. 

The Fair Association continues to use the County's Small Local Emerging Businesses 
database in soliciting and recruiting vendors. Chambers of Commerce throughout the 
County, including ethnic Chambers, also received information on competitive bidding 
opportunities at the Fairgrounds. 

This was the third year of our Volunteer Program, which successfully generated 7)73 
hours of trained volunteer assistance. Our Fair-time Volunteers came from 27 
communities - primarily Alameda and Contra Costa Counties - and represented various 
community organizations, non-profits, businesses and generous individuals. 

FAIR BOARD OFFICERS 
In July of 2011, the Fair Board elected Pat O'Brien for a second term as President and 
Janet Lockhart for a second term as Vice President. Mr. O'Brien is a CPA and business 
leader, resides in Pleasanton and was elected to the Fair Board in 2001. Ms. Lockhart is 
an active community leader, resides in- Dublin and was appointed to the Fair Board by 
Supervisor Miley in 2005. Past President Anthony Pegram continues to Chair the 
Executive Committee. Mr. Pegram is an Engineer and resides in Oakland. Director Dean 
Schenone now Chairs the Audit Committee. Mr. Schenone is a private business owner and 
resides in Pleasanton. As the officers of the Fair Board, Mr. O'Brien, Ms. Lockhart, Mr. 
Pegram and Mr. Schenone also serve as the Fair Board's designated representatives to 
the "County/Fair Liaison Ad Hoc Committee." 

FAIR BOARD TRANSITION 
The Fair Association remains in full compliance with the County Operating Agreement, 
which instituted a 12 year term limit for service on the Fair Board. All 26 Fair Board 
Members have transitioned off of the Fa ir Board, since 1998. Directors com pleting 12 
years of service this year and retiring from the Board included: Sherman Balch, Patti Ising, 
Art Scott, and Anthony Varni. The Fair Board is currently following its formal recruiting and 
nominating process to fill its elected vacancies. The Fair Board has continued to develop 
new leadership through assigning Co Chairs to lead its various standing Committees. 

CHALLENGES FOR 2012 
It is anticipated that the National, State and local economies will continue to present 
unprecedented challenges for the Fair Association in 2012, and into 2013. The attendance 
and spending patterns of our patrons may shift if unemployment remains high in the Bay 
Area and personal finances are further strained. 

In early 2011, increment weather took a significant toll on major rental events at the 
Fairgrounds and caused a significant shortfall in revenues to the Fair Association. Both the 
March and June Good Guys Car Shows were rained out. The success of the 2011 Annual 
County Fair, coupled with the Fair Association's ability to book new rentals, will help to 
normalize revenues by year-end. The Fair Association will continue to seek to keep its 
operating reserves at a healthy level should inclement weather be a factor in 2012 
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Wagering on horseracing across the nation is in decline, and California's horse racing 
industry continues to look for methods to bolster its racing programs. We were active in 
gaining approval for SB-1 072, which went into effect this summer and generated new 
"purse monies" for horsemen during our 2011 Race Meet. The Fair Association remains 
diligent in monitoring changes in horse racing. 

While the Fair Association's 2012 BUdget is conservative, the Association will continue to 
closely monitor month-to-month revenues and expenditures and make prudent adjustments 
as warranted. 

IN CLOSING 
As suggested by the County, the Fair Association has embarked on a "visioning process" 
whereby the Fair Board is working with a third party facilitator to evaluate current and 
potential uses of the Fairgrounds. As this visioning process continues, input from the 
County of Alameda will be very important. 

On behalf of the Association's Board of Directors and Staff, I wish to thank the Board of 
Supervisors and County Staff for their continued support and encouragement. We 
appreciate your review and approval of the Fair Association's 2012 BUdget. Once 
approved by the County, the Association will officially forward it to the California 
Department of Food and Agriculture in Sacramento in compliance with the State's 
November 30,2011 deadline. 

The Fair Association continues to appreciate the ongoing support and leadership of the 
County of Alameda. Please do not hesitate to contact us with any questions that you might 
have on our 2012 Annual Budget. 

cc:	 Fair Board 
Susan Muranishi 
Crystal Hishida Graff 

6 



---

---

-----

OPERATING BUDGET
 

OISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION .:-A.::.:la:.:.m~e:..:d.::.a COUNTY 

Conducllng The Alameda County Agricultural Association 

al Pleasanton . California 

For the period of January 1, 2012 to December 31 . 2012 

Accl. Actllal Budgeted Estimated Proposed 

No. 2010 2011 2011 2012 , 
TOTAl NET ,JANUARY 1: . 

Unrestricted net resources ------­ --­ $2.156.079 52,200,968 $2.366.559 _. $2.449.423 

Restricted resources 
~.. _. 152 20,000 7,576 20.000 

Inveslmenl in Cap/lal Assets, Net of Related Debt 7,942,058 7.481.194_._­ 7,829,942 7,459,654 

Subtotal (Total Net Resources) .­ - 10.098.289-. -. 9,702.162 10.204,On
,",- . 9.929,on 

- .f----.-- ­ ~--
_.. 

RESOURCES ACQUIRED: , . _., .. - .. .. ...•. .. - -_. 
Operating Revenues (From Page 2) -­ 19.946.505 - ­ -

19.485,000 19,525,000 19.375.000...... - .- __ 0. 

Stale (LocalJBase) Allocations (to Page ?): 31200 --­
Fiscal & Administrative Assistance (F&E) (to Page 2): 3130~ 1-. 

Capital Project Re~mbursement FundS (from Schad 8A) 31900 --. 49,000 0 0 

... __O~e::!!.me Revenue Sources (fire camp. sale of property. capital project aue 32500 - . _. 

_~o.ntributions from.Olher Gov1 (non·F&E) Sources {IO Page 2} 33000 .. 

__ Other le.g.. Pet!. ~bng used for oper.) (to Page 2) 3-4000 

1--·,,-···· 
TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE ---­ -~_.-- -_.-­

30.093.794 -­ . . . - - ~,187.16~ 29,729.0n 29.304.077- _ .. - .. 

---_ .. -
RESOURCES APPLIED:

1--·----­ -
f--- .<?~~t1ng Expenditures (FrOm Pag~~. _ -­ 18.934.128 19.085.000 18.800,000 18.975.000 

___C?lI~e! Operating ExpendilUres (e.g. Audit AdjustmenlsL.. 
---' -­ - 148 . ­ -­ .. ... - '-, -­ -

.. Subtotal- Operating Expenditures (Excluding Depreciation) .... 18.934.276 •..1.~.085,OOO 18.800,000 '8,975.000 

Depreciation Expense (From Page 10) 90000 __ 955...:.~.!.. 1.000,000 1,000,000 900.000 
'- - .......-_..•
-

TOTAL RESOURCES APPLIED 19.889.717 _2..0,085.000 .. 19.800.000 19.925.000 
. ­

.. .. .. .-- - I-- -­-...:fTOTAL NET RE.............,... DECEMBER 31: I~ 29100 $10.204.077 $9,102.162 $9.929,077 $9.379,077 

Unreslricted Net Resources Available for Operations 2.366.659 2.150.968 2.449,423 2.288.423_. - . 

Restricled Net Resources 7.576 20.~~ 20,000 20.000-_._- ---,.._." -1- - -_. 

Investment. in Capital Assels (From SChedule,?) 7.829,942 6,931.194. I- 7.459.654 7.070.664-_ .. .. .- - -­
SublO1al (Tolal Nel Res Check Figure· shOUld equal #29100) $10,204,077 $9.102,162 $9.929,077 ~.~79.077 

Reserve Percentage 12.5% 11.3% 13.0% 12.1% -- . 

COUNTY APPROVALS (County Fairs Only): 

fJ;;:;d~~kJA:IdP; 
Chairman. Board of Supervisors Date

prer;nt.~ff/~
./.... . ,~ /P-/.J-I! 

Date County Clerk DateChief E~tiv~ffL8€r / /7 I 
r '-..J DEPARTMENT OF'FOOD & AGRICULTURE 

Director Date 
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Page 2 

Summary of Ope".tions Alameda County Agrlcultur;ll Assoclallon 

Accl. AClual Budgeted Esllmated Proposed 

No. 2010 2011 2011 2012 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

AdmIssion 5 10 GI'Q und s 41000 $1.674.452 $1.670.000 $1.721.000 $1.725.000 

Commerc181 Space 41500 ~,825 553.000 586.600 585.000 

Concessions 42000 1.863.043 1,872.000 2.071.000 20015.000 

EXhibits 43000 60.132 82.000 53.000 55.000 

Horse Show 44000 2,364.547 2.310.000 2.185.000 1.8150.000 

Horse Racing (Uve) 45000 3.642.322 3.5-45.000 3.426.000 3,375.000 

Salellile Wallering 45005 2.104.370 1.925.000 1.644.000 1.665,000 

Fair AlII'actions 45000 

Molol1Uld Radng 46109 l .' ~ , 
Interim All",etions 46009 

MIScellaneous Fall 47000 2,428,893 2.44&.000 2,557.500 2,710.000 

Mlseellal\eous Non·Fall progrnms 47005 13.143 20.000 20.000 25.000 

Intenm Revenue 48000 5.070,614 ".805.000 4,555,000 -4.970.000 

Prior Year Revenue Adjustments 49000 

Other Operaling Rel/enue 49500 172.184 275.000 500.000 400,000 

TOT"L OPERATING REVENUES (to Page 1) 19.946.505 . 19.<185.000 19.525,000 19,375.000 

OPERATING EXPENOrrURES; 

Ad mInlslra~on 50000 1.518.4&8 1.540,000 1.575.000 1.615.000 

Maintenance & General Operallons 52000 2.382.743 2.285.000 2.425.000 2.645.000 

Publicily 54000 2.117.194 2.168.000 2,206,000 2.220.000 

Attendanee Opera lion5 56000 1.748.482 1.750.000 1.750.000 1,860.000 

Miscellaneous Fair 57000 

M;seellaneous Non-Fair Programs 57005 15.956 20,000 20.000 25,000 

Premiums 58000 240,299 245.000 256.000 250.000 

Exhibits 63000 637.390 725.000 725.000 750.000 

Horse Show 64000 2.453.641 2,560.000 2.260.000 2.050,000 

Horse Racing (Lil/e) 65000 2.955,276 2.eeo,000 2.8<10.000 2,635,000 

SatelJ~e Wagering 65005 1,373.131 1.410.000 1.380.000 1,250.000 

Fair Entertainment 66000 1.065.905 1.142.000 1.113.000 1.160.000 

MOlorized RacIng 56109 

Imenm Entertalnment 66009 2.40S.~ 2.380.000 2.250.000 2,415,000 

Equipment (Funded by Fair) 72300 

Prior Year Expense Adjustments 80000 

Cash (overfunder) 85000 

Other Operabng Expense 94000 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDrrURES (10 Page 1) 18.934.128 19.085,000 18,800.000 16.97Moo 

NET OPERATING PROFfTl(LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION 1,012,377 <100.000 725.000 <100.000 

Oepreclation Expense 90000 955.441 1,000.000 1.000.000 950,000 

NET OPERATING PROFrrr(LOSS) AFTER DEPRECIATION 56.936 {600.ooo (275,000) (550.000 

LOCAL (BASEl ALLOCATION. (From Page 1) 31200 

OTHER FUNDS· ACCT. '313. ~25, .330.'34l) (From Pagel) 

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION, CURRENT YEAR. $1,012.377 $400.000 $725.000 $400.000 

NET PROFrT/(LOSS) AFTER DEPRECIATION. CURRENT YEAR $56.936 (~OO,OOO\ ($275.000 ($550.000) 
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Detail of Revenues 

Acc!. Actual Budgeted Estimated Proposed 

No. 2010 2011 2011 2012 

ADMISSIONS REVENUE: 

Regular Fair Admissions 41010 1,674,452 1,670,000 1.727,000 1,725,000 

Discounted Fair Admissions 41020 

TOTAL ADMISSIONS REVENUE 41000 1,674.452 1,670,000 1,727,000 1,725,000 

COMMERCIAL SPACE REVENUE; 

Outside Commercial Space 41510 552,825 553.000 586,500 585,000 

Inside Commercial Space 41520 

TOTAL COMMERCIAL SPACE REVENUE 41500 552.825 553,000 586.500 585,000 

CONCESSIONS REVENUE; 

Camival 42100 851.607 860.000 962,000 945,000 

Carnival: Pre-Sale 42110 114,965 115,000 94,000 95.000 

Food Concessions 42200 896,451 897.000 995,000 975,000 

Non-Food Concessions 42300 

TOTAL CONCESSIONS REVENUE 42000 1.863,043 1,872,000 2,071,000 2.015,000 

EXHIBITS REVENUE: 

Enlry Fees 43100 60,132 62,000 53,000 55,000 

Donated &Sponsored Awards 43200 

Advertising in Premium Book 43300 

Other (Explain) 43400 

TOTAL EXHIBITS REVENUE 43000 60,132 62,000 53,000 55,000 

STABLING REVENUE: 

Rental Barns 44100 

Vanning and Stabling 44200 2,339,910 2,265,000 2,162,000 1,825,000 

Rv Camping 44300 13,800 14,000 13,500 14,000 

Utilities 44400 0 5.000 4,000 5,000 

Program Sales 44500 

Other (Explain) 44600 10,837 6.000 5,500 6,000 

TOTAL HORSE SHOW REVENUE 44000 2,364.547 2,310,000 2,185,000 1,850,000 

LIVE HORSE RACING REVENUE: 

Admissions 45100 73,497 75.000 76,000 85,000 

Track Commissions &Breakage 45200 1.709.392 1.596,500 1,493,500 1,428.500 

Program Sales 45300 104,806 105,000 102,000 105,000 

Purse Money paid 45400 1,625,000 1.631,500 1,631.500 1.631,500 

GS Food and Beverage 114,483 127,500 113,000 115.000 

Other (Explain) aIm/racing merchandise 45500 15.142 7.500 10,000 10,000 

TOTAL LIVE HORSE RACING REVENUE 45000 3,642,322 3,545,000 3,426,000 3,375,000 
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Detail of Revenues 

Ace!. Actual Budgeted Estimated Proposed 

No. 2010 2011 2011 2012 

SATELLITE WAGERING REVENUE: 

TOTAL SATELLITE WAGERING REVENUE 45005 2,104,370 1,925,000 1.844,000 1,665,000 

FAIR ATTRACTIONS REVENUE: 

Rodeo Admissions 46100 

Queen Pageant Admissions 46200 

4 Wheel-Drive Pull Admissions 46300 

Destruction Deroy Admissions 46400 

Performances Admissions 46500 

Other Admissions (Explain) 46600 

TOTAL FAIR ATTRACTIONS REVENUE 46000 0 0 0 0 

MOTORIZED RACING REVENUE: 

TOTAL MOTORIZED RACING REVENUE 46109 0 a 0 0 

INTERIM ATTRACTIONS REVENUE: 

Performance Admissions 46209 

Other Admissions (List) 46309 

TOTAL INTERIM ATTRACTIONS REVENUE 46009 0 0 0 0 

MISCELLANEOUS FAIR REVENUE; 

Parlling 47100 657,100 645.000 691,000 800,000 

Shows, Rides, Novelties, Art Sales 47200 63,873 63,000 66,500 61,000 

Utility Fee Reimbursement 47300 8,000 14,000 8.000 10,000 

In Kind Sponsorship 47400 1,182,229 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 

ATM Revenue 47500 22,667 22,000 20.000 20.000 

Camping Fees (Fairtime) 47700 96,790 90,000 84,000 85,000 

Other (Explain) 47800 11,135 12,000 15,000 18,000 

Sponsorships 47900 387,099 402,000 457,000 500,000 

Cup Salesfentertalners commissions 16,000 16,000 

TOTAl MISCELLANEOUS FAIR REVENUE 47000 2,428,893 2,448,000 2,557,500 2,710,000 

MISCELLANEOUS NON-FAIR PROGRAMS: Recycle 

Admissions 47105 

Commercial Exhibits 47205 

Concessions 47305 

Exhibits 47405 

Other (Explain) 47505 13,143 20,000 20.000 25,000 

TOTAL MISC. NON-FAIR PROGRAMS 47005 13,143 20,000 20,000 25,000 



Page 5 

Detail of Revenues 

Acet. Actual Budgeted Estimated Proposed 

No. 2010 2011 201 ~ 2012 

INTERIM REVENUE: 

Rental of Buildings 48100 1,075,775 1,000.000 990,000 1,025.000 

Grounds Rentals 48200 1,549,901 1,500,000 1,612,000 1.630,000 

Equipment Rentals 48300 386,752 345,000 333.000 345.000 

Concessions Revenue 48400 452,631 433.000 310,000 431.000 

Utility Fee Reimbursement 48500 60.990 55,000 60,000 55.000 

Interim Parking Revenue 48600 1,029.400 980,000 833,000 990,000 

Other Interim Revenue (Ust) 48700 23.312 20.000 8.000 22.000 

Labor ReimbursemenVEvent Service Fee 491,853 472,000 409,000 472,000 

TOTAL INTERIM REVENUE 48000 5.070,614 4,805.000 4.555,000 4,970,000 

TOTAL PRIOR YEAR REVENUE ADJUSTMENT; 49000 

OTHER OPERATING REVENUE: 

Interest Eamings 49510 10,387 10,000 8,000 10,000 

Grants! DonationslCARF NcotWinc 49520 25,868 225,000 447.000 350.000 

Otherl Jetter 49530 25,046 40,000 45,000 40.000 

Ovations Cap Ex Funding 49540 99,186 

Other 11,677 

State AppropriatIOns 

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 49500 172,164 275,000 500,000 400,000 
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Detail of expenditures 

Acc! Actual Budgeted ESlomaled Proposed 

No. 2010 2011 20t 1 20t2 

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE: 

Salaries 8. Wages· Permanent 50100 870.964 855.000 878.000 890.000 

Salaries 8. Wages· Temporary 50200 4.000 2,500 

Payroll Allocation ·3.322 ·10.000 

Compensated Absences Expense 50300 0 

Employee Benefits· Employe(s Share 50310 108.829 107.500 110.000 126.000 

Payroll Taxes 50320 56,077 63.000 64,000 68,000 

U.I Insurance 1.409 4.000 8.000 4,000 

Worker's Compensation Insurance 50330 40,405 44,000 48.000 50,000 

Professional SelV;oos (Contractual) 50400 147,542 141,500 140,000 142.000 

Director's Expense 50500 21,159 26,000 28,000 27,000 

Travelingnraining Expense· Employees 50600 24.610 21,000 20.000 21,000 

Office Supplies and Expense 50700 81,964 98,500 85.000 98.000 

Utilities 50800 31,847 38,500 34,500 38,500 

Telephone and Postage 28,107 26,500 34,000 29,000 

Dues and SUbscription 4,678 4.500 4.000 4.500 

Equipment Rental 50900 48,420 50,000 45.000 45,000 

IrlSurance (General Liabilily)auto/Propeny 51000 32,063 30,000 35,000 33,000 

Other (ExplalnlLow COSl equipment 51100 19,706 4,000 3,000 3.000 

Unemployment Insurance (Non-reimbursed) 51200 

Audit Expense 51300 36.000 36.000 36.000 

Current Year Bad Debl Expense 51400 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE 50000 1,518.458 1,540,000 1,575,000 1,615,000 

MAINTENANCE & GENERAL OPERATIONS: 

Salanes & Wages - Permanenl 52100 1,365,887 1,349,000 1,365,000 1,402,000 

Salanes & Wages· Temporary 52200 91,852 51,000 51,000 53.000 

Payroll Allocation ·100,936 -170,000 ·75.000 ·70,000 

Employee Beneflls 52210 400.427 384.000 400.000 424,500 

U,llnsurance 3,409 8.000 9,000 8.000 

PayeoH Taxes 52220 113.007 108.000 108,000 111.000 

WoM<er's Compensation Insurance 52230 65.566 78.000 78.000 80,000 

Professional SelVices (Contractual) 52300 22,471 35.000 20.500 31.250 

Supplies a"d Expense 52400 18,400 39.500 34,500 42.000 

Rental - Maintenance Equipment 52500 6.518 1.000 2,000 2,500 

Propeny and Auto Insurance 52600 4.261 5,000 6.000 7,000 

Temporary Electrical Work (Contractual) 52700 

Ughl. Heal. Waler and Power 52800 127,470 119,500 125,000 138,300 

Mai"lenance of Equipment - Supplies & Expel'S 52900 147,918 170.000 164,000 175,000 

Maint. of 8ldgs, & GroUnds- Supplies & Expens 53000 104.339 95,000 125,000 128,450 

Trash Removal. Clean up (Contractual) 53100 12,154 12,000 12,000 12,000 

Other (explain) 53200 

Special Repairs & Maintenance (list) 53300 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 52001 2,382,743 2,285,000 2,425.000 2,545,000 
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Data il 01 Ex Pll ndIture. 

ACCI Aclual BUdgeted ESllmaled Proposed 

NO 2010 2011 2011 2012 

PUBLICITY EXPEt<lSE: 

Sa lanes & Wages - Permanenl 54100 280.69) 279.000 283.000 290.000 

Salaries &. Wages - Tamporary ~101 7.276 14.000 13.000 14,000 

Payroll Allocallon (48,000) (~.OOO) (48,000) 154.000) 

Employee Benefits 541\0 35,909 36.000 ~ll.OOO 42.300 

Pa \>'TOil Tax es 54120 19.524 21,500 23,000 24.000 

WOl<e(s Compensallon lr'!5urance 54130 11.4~ 15,500 16.500 16,500 

ProJessional Se",,,,es (Conus Cl"" I) 54200 51.016 67.000 63.500 67.400 

Supplies and EJ<pe nsa 54300 27.043 43,500 47,000 43.600 

Advertising 54400 362,813 360.000 365.000 ~O,OOO 

SpO"sors~"ps 119.962 110.000 130.000 130,000 

Promotl ona I ExpeI'se 54500 43.916 45,000 50.000 60,000 

InKind Se",,, e 54600 1,162.229 1.100,000 1,200.000 1.200.000 

Pre·Fall Events 54700 23.327 27.000 25.000 26.000 

Olher (Expla ill) 54800 1.500 

TOTAL PUBLICITY EXPENSE 54000 2.117,194 2.168.000 2.206.000 2.220,000 

ATTENDANCE OPERATIONS: 

Salaries & Wages· Permanenl 56100 8,750 11.000 15.500 13.000 

Salalles & Wages· Temporary 56101 378,454 349.000 363.000 360.000 

Pa \>'Toll Alicea lion 90,019 84.000 81.000 82,000 

EmplOyee Senefil$ 56110 :;5.400 39.5Q0 43,500 39,500 

Payroll Taxes 56120 <9.676 28,000 28.000 29.000 

WOl1<e(s Compensation I~urance 55130 22.994 19.500 22.000 21.000 

ProfesSlonaI Se rvices (Con"aclua I) 56200 67\.403 578.000 701.000 701,000 

General llabllily 103.805 107,000 103.900 10~,000 

Supplies and Expense 56300 199,723 233.500 215,000 222.000 

Utili,ies 69,792 69.000 68.100 70.500 

Ranlal EquIpmenl 65.580 56.000 68,000 55.000 

Olher (Explaln)9ao OebVBan< Fee 56400 69,885 65.500 41.000 152,000 

TOTAL ATTENDANCE OPERATIONS 56000 1,748,432 1,750.000 1,750,000 1.860,000 

MISCELLANEOUS FAIR EXPENSE: 

Parting lot . % paid 10 COntraClor 57100 

Park in (I Lol - Sa la ries & Wages • Permanenl 57101 

Parldno lot· sa lanes & Wa ges • Tem poral)' 57102 

PrOQram Expense 57200 

Ulility Feas 57300 

&hIM GUIde 57400 

Stall Ex pense 57500 

Sponsorships 57700 

Oiller (Explain) 57800 

Com merelsl ExhlbilS & Conoosslons 57900 

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS FAIR 57000 0 0 0 (} 

MISCELLANEOUS NON-FAIR PROGRAMS: Rec~cle 

Salaries 8 Wages· Permanenl 57105 

Salalies 8 Wa~es - Tem porary 57105 1.903 

Payroll alloC<lllons 5.000 10.000 10,000 12,000 

Employae Benefrts 57115 3,500 3,500 4,200 

P.yroll Taxes 57125 1.790 0 0 

Worke~s Compensation Insurance 57135 333 0 0 

Supplies 8 Expen se 57205 5.930 6,SOO 6,500 8,808 

Publicity 57305 

Allendance 57405 

ExhiMs 57505 

Oll1e r (hili. ill) 57605 

TOTAL MISC. NON-FAIR PROGRAMS 57005 15,956 20,000 20,000 25,000 
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Details of Expenditures 

Ace!. Actual Budgeled Estimated Proposed 

No, 20>0 2011 2011 2012 

PREMIUMS EXPENSE (Ellcluding Horse Show): 

Cash Awards 58100 221,610 226,000 232,000 228,000 

Trophies, Medals, Ribbons 58200 18,407 7,000 12.000 10,000 

Sponsored Cash Awards 58300 11,000 10,000 11,000 

Sponsored Trophies, Medals, Ribbons 58400 

Olher Awards (Explain) 58500 282 1.000 2,000 1,000 

TOTAL PREMIUM EXPENSE 58000 240,299 245,000 256,000 250,000 

EXHIBITS EXPENSE: 

Salanes & Wages· Permanent 63100 222,433 210,500 204,500 232,000 

Salaries & Wages· Temporary 63101 186,001 199,500 210,500 218,000 

Payroll Allocations -2,187 0 0 

Employee Benefits 63110 22,071 32,500 37,500 33,000 

Payroll Taxes 63120 35,480 31,500 36,000 35,000 

Worker's Compensallon Insurance 63130 19,535 22,000 25,000 24,000 

Judges (Conlraclual) 63200 21,475 25,000 27,500 28,000 

Professional ServIces· Other (Contractual) 63300 38,728 67,000 67.000 49,000 

Supplies and Expense 63400 73,968 101,000 80,000 99,500 

Tent & Booth Rental 63500 13,597 13,000 13,000 12,000 

Decorations 63600 10,000 12,000 10,000 

Other (Explain) 63700 6,289 13,000 12,000 9,500 

TOTAL EXHIBITS EXPENSE 63000 637,390 725,000 ns,OOO 750,000 

STABLING EXPENSE: 

Salaries & Wages - Permanent 64100 704,295 744,000 682,000 595,000 

Salanes & Wages - Temporary 64101 65,721 36,000 3,000 5,000 

Payroll Allocalions 84,261 160,000 65,000 50,000 

Employee Benefits 64110 224,743 272,000 241,500 208,000 

Payroll Taxes 64120 60,191 60,000 62,000 48,000 

Worker's Compeosallon Insurance 64130 41,716 44,000 43,000 32,000 

General LiabiltiylPropertylAU1o 64200 29,510 31,500 30,000 30,000 

Professional Services - Olher (Contractual) 64300 628,915 605,500 552,000 484,000 

Supplies and Expense 64400 31,171 30,500 30,000 31,000 

Utilities 64500 219,745 247,000 211,500 229,000 

Rental Equipment 122,213 114,000 120,000 100,000 

Maintenance of Track and EQUIpment 240,116 215,500 220,000 238,000 

Other (Explain) 64600 1,044 0 

Tenl & Booth Rental 64610 

Decoralions 64620 

Cash Awards 64710 

Trophies, Medals, Ribbons 64720 

Sponsored Cash Awards 64730 

Sponsored Trophies, Medals, Ribbons 54740 

TOTAL HORSE SHOW EXPENSE 64000 2,453,641 2,560,000 2,260.000 2,050,000 
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Detail of Ellpendllu res 

~Cl. AClual 8uogeled ESlimaled Proposed 

NO 2010 2011 2011 2012 

HORSE RACING EXPENSE (LIVE): 

Salaries & Waoes INon Pari-Mutuell 65100 250,116 238,000 211.000 208,000 

salaries & Wages lPari·Muluell 65200 

Pawoll Allocalion 44.245 32,000 29.000 34.000 

EmplOvee Beneflls 65210 83,811 64,000 73.000 81.500 

PaYlol1 Ta>.e. 65220 22.917 28.000 22.000 27.00ll 

Wor1<e(s Compensation Insurance 65230 13.522 '3.000 lll,SOO 11.500 

~nera' L,abllilv/PropenylRaco rneel 19.250 20.000 21,500 20.500 

Professional Semces (Conlractual) 65300 579.531 572.000 581,llOO 577.000 

Supplies ano Ellpense 65400 S4.017 108.500 105,000 85.500 

UliUies 8,276 9.500 10,000 10,000 

P(ograrnsiRacingformsJDloes1fT, 0 Sheets 20,478 21,500 19,000 19,000 

Rental • EQuipmenl 38,918 18.000 21.500 19.500 

Purse Monevl.33 1,630,376 1,631.500 1.631.500 1,631,500 

Advertl sl M ar>d PlOmolion 87,739 80.000 79,500 80,000 

OIMrl Solano Expense ~.5901 0 

Olher (Explain) TraC!<.side Temlce 65800 23.486 24.000 25.500 30.000 

TOTAL RACING EXPENSE IliI/E) 65000 2.95:;.278 2.soo.ooo 2,840.000 2.835.000 

SATELLiTE WAGERING EXPENSE: 

TOTAL SATELLITE WAGERING 8500S 1.373.131 '.410.000 1.380.000 1.250,000 

FAIR: ENTERTAINMENT EXPENSE: 

$alanes & WMes . Permanenl 66100 

salanes & Wages. Temporary 66101 81.719 75,000 72,500 76.000 

Payroll Allocetlon 2.000 5.000 0 6,000 

Benefit 1\i1~!lon 65110 4.000 4.000 8.000 

Payroll Taxes 66120 7,302 6.000 5.500 6,000 

Worl<e(s Compensation Insuranoe 66130 4.026 4,000 4.500 5.000 

Professi onal services (Comraelual> 68200 155.705 182.000 188.500 189,000 

Supplies and Expense 66300 32,216 41.000 40.500 4.3,000 

ROdeo 66400 

Gtounds Enlertalnmenl 66500 358.286 360,000 360,500 360.000 

Grandsland Enl9l1alnmenl 861500 419,950 440.000 410,000 440.000 

Olhe, (ExplalnjRental 58700 24,701 25.000 27.000 27.000 

TOTAL FAIR ENTERTAINMENl 66000 1.085.905 1,142,000 1.113.000 l,1~.000 

....OTORw:D RACINe:; EXPENSE' 

TOTAl MOTORIZED RACING EXPENSE 66109 0 0 0 0 

INTERIM ENTERTAINMENT EXPENSE: 

Salari es & Waoes • Permanenl 66208 954.681 953,000 942,000 970.000 

$alaries &. Wages· Temporarv 66209 228,785 235.000 203,000 238.000 

Payroll Allocation -77,080 -63.000 ~O.OOO ~.ooo 

EmplOyee BenefIts 662'S 151.776 186.000 190,500 205.200 

P3\'rotl To...,. 58229 95,911 90,000 87.000 93,000 

Workers Compensation Insumaoe 66239 53.068 55,000 57,000 66,000 

General Llabillty/Propertv/Race meel 68.708 65.000 59,000 65.500 

UWllle. 260,643 266,000 265,000 276.000 

Supplies & Expense 66309 110,715 108.000 '26.500 105.200 

Promotional Expense 13,448 18.000 16.500 15,600 

Inlerest Exl'ense ;)3,439 33,500 30.000 30.500 

Evenl S<lrwces 234.901 242,500 142,000 232.000 

Professional $eNlces 151,224 144,000 140.000 '46,000 

Other (Explain)Bed OeOtl8an~ Fee 66809 95.4 34 47.000 51.5OCl 36.000 

lOTALINTERIM ENTERTAINMENT 66009 2,405.653 2.380,000 2.250.000 2.415.000 
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Detail of Expenditures 

Accl. Actual Budgeted Estimated Proposed 

No. 2010 2011 2011 2012 

NON-CAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT EXPENSE (LIST) (Cost Jass than $5,000 and life Jess /han one year): 

TOTAL EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 

PRIOR YEAR OPERATING EXPENSE A.DJUSTMENT: 

General Expense Adjustments 

Bad Debt Expense 

PRIOR YEAR EXPENDITURE 

CASH SHORTAGES & OVERAGES: 

Ticket Sales 

Souvenir Sales 

Merchandise sales 

Other (Explain) 

CASH (OVER)lUNDER 

72300 

80010 

80020 

80000 

85100 

85200 

85500 

85900 

85000 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE: (From: Sch 7 I To: Pg, 1) 90000 955,441 1,000,000 1,000,000 950,000 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE: 

Loss on Sale of Asset 

Other Expenses 

94010 

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE 94000 0 0 0 0 
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v .ana nee Repa rt AutomatlcaIfIy prepared 
8udgeted vs. Estimated Estimated vs. 

Acct. Fluctuation 2011 2011 2012 Proposed Fluctuation 

No. S Change % Change Budgeted Estimated Proposed $ ChanQe % Change 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Admissions to Grounds 41000 $57,000 3.4% $1,670,000 $1,727.000 $1,725,000 ($2,000 -0.1% 

Commercial Space 41500 33.500 6,1% 553.000 586,500 585.000 (1,500 -0.3% 

Concessions 42000 199.000 1Q.6% 1,872.000 2.071,000 2,015.000 (66,000) -2.7% 

EXhibits 43000 (9,000 I -14.5% 62,000 53,000 55.000 2,000 3.8% 

Stabling 44000 (125,000 -5.04% 2,310.000 2,185.000 1,850.000 (335,000' -15.3% 

Horse Racing (Live) 45000 (119,000) -3.4% 3.545,000 3,426.000 3,375,000 (51.000) -1.5% 

Satellite Wagering 45005 (81,000 -4.2% 1.925,000 1,844,000 1.665.000 (179,000' -9.7% 

Fair At1faclions 46000 #CIVIOI #DtV/O! 

Motorized Raclng 46109 jDlVlO1 #OIVJ'O! 

Interim Attractions 46009 I #CIVla! #CIVIOI 

Miscellaneous Fair 47000 109,500 4.5% 2,448.000 2,557.500 2.710.000 152,500 6.0% 

Misc. Non-Fair Programs 47005 20,000 20,000 25,000 5.000 25.0% 

Interim Revenue 48000 (250,000 -5.2% 4,805,000 4,555,000 4,970.000 415,000 9.1% 

Prior Year Revenue Adj 49000 #OlVlOl #OIVlOr 

Other Operating Revenue 49500 225,000 81.8% 275.000 500,000 400,000 (100,000 -20.0% 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 40,000 02% 19,485,000 19.525,000 I 19.3.75.000 (150.000 -0.8% 
~ 

OPERATING EXPENDITURES: 

Administration 50000 35.000 2.3% 1.540,000 
I 

1.575.000 1.615.000 40,000 2.5% 

Maintenance & Gen Ops 52000 140,000 6.1% 2.285,000 2,425.000 2.545,000 120,000 4.9% 

Publicity 54000 38,000 1.8% 2,168.000 2.206,000 2,220,000 14,000 0.6% 

Attendance Operations 56000 1.750,000 1.750,000 1.860.000 110,000 6.3% 

Miscellaneous Fair 57000 #0IVIOI #CIV/O] 

Misc. Non-Fair Programs 57005 20.000 20,000 25.000 5,000 25.0% 

Premiums 58000 11,000 4.5% 245.000 256,000 250.000 (6.000) -2.3% 

Exhibits 63000 725,000 725,000 750.000 25.000 3.4% 

Stabling 64000 (300,000) -11.7% 2,660,000 2,26Q.000 2.050.000 (210,000) -9.3% 

Horse Racing (Live) 65000 (20,000' -0.7% 2,860,000 2.840,000 2,835,000 (5.000) -0.2% 

Satellite Wagering 65005 (30,000) -2.1% 1,410,000 1.380,000 1,250.000 (130,000 -9.4% 

Fair Entertainment Expense 66000 (29.000) -2.5% 1,142,000 1.113.000 1.160.000 47,000 4.2% 

Molorized Rating 66109 #DIVIOI #DIVlOf 

Interim Entertainment Exp 66009 (130,000' -5.5% 2:3'80,000 I 2250,000 2,415,000 165:000· 7.3% 
[I , 

Equipment (Funded by Fair) 72300 #DIVIOI #OI.vIO! 

Prior Year Expense Adj 80000 #DIVIOI #pIVIO! 

Cash (over/under) 85000 #DIVIOI #OIVlOl 

Depreciation 90000 1.000,000 1,000.000 950,000 (50.000 -5.0% 

Other Operating Expense 94000 #OIVIO! #CIV/OI 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES (285,000) -1.4% 20,085,000 19,800,000 19,925,000 125,000 0.6% 

NET EFFECT $325,000 -54.2% ($600,000)1 ($275,00011 ($550,000) 1($275,00011 1 



Schedule 7 

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 
PROPOSED ACQUISITIONS & DISPOSITIONS 

AI ameda County Ag 'leuIlU'aI Assoc laIIOn Pleasanton 
(Legal Name of Fair) (Locallon) 

Estimated Proposed 

2011 2012 

PROPERTY. PLANT.\ EQUIPMENT (PP&EI. January 1: $36,604.127 $37,082.127 

ACQUISITIONS OF FIXED ASSETS. 

Land 0 0 

BUIldings & 1mprovements: 

MaJo, Maintenance (MMP) Projects 0 0 

ADA Projects 0 0 

BUilding Improvements 149,000 125.000 

Land Improvements 42.000 0 

New CQnstruclion 0 0 

Construcllon in Progress 0 0 

Equiomenl 287.000 275.000 

Other F!Xed Assels 0 0 

Other 0 0 

TOTAL ACQUISITIONS OF FIXEO ASSETS 478.000 4QO.OOO 

TOTAL PP&E BEFORE DISPOSITIONS & DEPRECIATION 37,0112,127 37.482,127 

DISPOSITION OF FIXED ASSETS (SalvaQed. Sold. ele): 

Land 0 0 

BuildingS & tmprovements 

Equlpmenl 

Olher Fbced Assets 0 0 

Other: 0 0 

TOTAL DISPOSITIONS OF FIXED ASSETS 0 0 

PP&E BEFORE DEPRECIATION. December 31 37.082,127 37.482.127 

DEPRECIATION' 

Accumulated Depreciation. Jaf'OJa!y 1 27.219,413 28.219.473 

Les. AlD on 0 IS positions of Fixed AsselS above 

Annual Depreciation Expense (from page 10) 1.000.000 950.000 

Accumulaled Oeprecialloo. Decembet 31 28.219.473 29.169,473 

PP&E. NET OF DEPRECIATION. December 31 8.862.6501 8.312,654 

LQNG·TERM DEBT (ASSOCIATED WITH FIXED ASSETS) 1.403,000 1.242.000 

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS. DECEMBER 31: (to page 1) $7,459,654 $7.070.654 

NOTE: Entel' an ,"-,mOOr. as a positive 



F'ropOHd 2012 C()nt'.aG1v~1 Pro1enlonal seMeu 

NO. Of Est lengl/'lo 0{ SeNic;.es Amount B""daeted 

ACCT 

NO. TYPE OF SERVICE 

5()4OO L..,al Se....o<l 

admln CQmpvte.' Support 

J.an-Ilorial Services. 

Ol~" 

63300 Comp-Jter $vppo<1 

"""'hl!! Jan itOnit $el'\l':lc:es 

Ol.her 

66200	 SUlge &F'rOduetiO('l Sel"V1ces 

"311	 llg""IVI.oo 

SOlIn. 

EntertaInment COOIdlnat()( 

O""'r 

56200	 Tn:lsn 

A"""""nee Aud~ 

Sec.unly 

OutSide s.,..,.lce 

~:IOO	 COmpLtler 

Mkl9	 Web-site 

Me-dlli11 61Jyer 

Otller 

64300 Garnage 

S"'bllng Seeun'l' 

~r 

65300	 CARF S.",1ees 

hve rs~n9 P.an:nl,Jtvel Servi:tes 

SC"Q..Jrl)' 

Video PatIO: 

Trat' elad;ng 

Ambv1anee Service 

OI~W 

52300	 COfI\pvter SUPPOtI 

mafM	 we-eo Abatel"lltf"11 

0\1'10' 

65325 SeGvrity 

Satellite Atann MorutOl'lnog 

Othe.r 

66Boo S"""ny 

EveolS t ..>11 

P.""o~ 

0tJ\...
 

Olll... RV C."P'ng
 

POSI-

lions 

(~urs, 

Number 

12 montM 

'2010"11\$ 

12monll\S 

12 mont~$ 

Fal'thne 

F.alrtime 

Fairtlme 

Feil"time 

Falf'\ime 

Falrtime 

Fall'1ime 

F.I~lme 

F"'1)me 

Falrome 

Falrtlmc­

F8irtime 

,~ mCI"H',S 

'2 month. 

12 mOnths 

12 l'n04'1rts 

12.,..,tIls 

12monll\S 

'2monP>s 

Falrl,;ime 

Falttime 

FalrtJrne 

Fainlme 

Falr1ime 

Fail'time 

Flilirtlme 

12 months 

12 ",onP>s 

12 m011Ih:s 

12 ""'olt,. 

12 mOJ\\~' 

lZtrlOI1l.hs 

12 mOf'l-tns. 

\2 monlno 

12 montM~ 

12 mont'" 

'2 mo."'ltns 

da, , mool"') 

UMRale 

50,000.00 

60.000.00 

1e.ooO.Oo 

'4.000.00 

5.000.00 

6.000,00 

3e.OOO.OO 

00,000,00 

300.'50.00 

62,000.00 

<1,630.00 

31.220.00 

30,000.00 

10,000.00 

!s06.00000 

155.000.00 

1,200.00 

6,200.00 

20.000,00 

40,000.00 

69.00000 

2~.OOOOO 

160.000.00 

2a.5.000.00 

124.000.00 

50.000.00 

300.20000 

12.00000 

9.000.00 

62,800.00 

'.250.00 

1B,OOO. 00 

\2,000.00 

~.OOO.OO 

6,500.00 

10.000.00 

115.000.00 

14.000.00 

12.000.00 

3.000.00 

2.000.00 

Aco:n,nl 

DelEljl Total$ 

'42,000 

49.000 

169,000 

101.000 

67 .•00 

4B4.oo0 

577,000 

31.250 

71,500 

146.000 



SUMMARY OF SATELLITE WAGERING 

SW-l 

Acel. ACtual Budgeted Eslimated P,oposed 

No, 2010 2011 2011 2012 

SATELLITE WAGERING REVENUE: 

Admissions· General ane! Season 45115-­ $402.789 $390.000 $373,500 $342,000 

• VIP Area ---_. _. - 45125 

Track Commissions (2%•.6%. e~c.:L_ 45205 1,129,214 1,100,000 1,055.000 945.000 

~~gram~~~ ..­ 45305 276.749 255.000 256,000 240.000 

Concessions-. ._­ ~~ .. 45405 
_.-~ 

37.682 35,000 35.000 35.000 

lOllery --, 45505---. 70,924 72,000 75,000 60.000 

ATM - . _. 45605- . - 46,216 42.000 44,000 40,000 

Novellies/Gift Shop 45705 
-

4,857 4.000 4.000 3.000 

_Promolion~ lind Advertising 45805 42.210 2!>,OOO 

Other . Sponsor revenue 45915 

_. • Impacl Fees 
,'---­

45925 

-
• Miscel!aneOus (Explain) 45935 2.000 1,500 

-­ • ReImbursement (Explain) .... - ....­
45945 

Prior Year Revenue Adjustment 49005 

Magna Settlement 93.729 

TOTAL (Forward to Page 4) 4S005 2,104,370 1,925,000 1.844.000 1,665.000 

SATELLITE WAGERING EXPENSE: 

Salaries and Wages-Permanent 65105 429.855 457.000 452.500 436,000 

Salaries and Wages·Temporary 36,544 32,000 40.000 40.000 

Payroll Allocation .- -­ ---­ 6.000 6.000 6.000 4.000 

Employee Benefits .. ~15 146,522 151.500 162.S00 121.000 

Payroll T,axes -­ 65125 37,405 34.500 34,000 36,000 

Worker's Compensation Insurance 65135 22,641 25.500 26.000 26.000 

TravelfTraining
1--' 

~5~05-­ 5.670 6.200 6.000 6.000 

General Liability/Property Insurance - ---­ --. 65315 14.751 18.500 17,500 17.500 

PrOfessional Services & Contracts -------.-­ 65325 96.063 106,400 94,500 71.500 

Equipment Replacemenl Fund and/or Sinking Fund 65405 14.128 0 a 
Publicity and Marketing 65505 71.630 93.000 78,500 71,000 

_ ~~~I~~ ExP:,8nse· General (office. janitorial & malnl) 65615 41.268 42,500 35,500 37,000 

• Programs, Concessions, P~r~~g - 65625 235.473 219.900 224.000 194,500 

leases andlor Rentals .. 65705 3,228 3.500 3.000 3.000 

Fuel & Utilities 
f---­ -­ .. _.. ,_..~ - 65805 88.254 43.500 37.000 38,500 

- lottery Expense _.. ..­ 64.000 60.000 SO.OOO 

'_O~:r (Explain),33 moneyJlot1ery/bad debl ..­ 65915 123.699 60.000 60,000 55,000 

_ Intere~.§x.P8nse .. ~-~.- -. 46.000 43.000 43,000 

Prior Year Expendilure Adjustmenl 
,--, ,-----.­ . -­ --------~9.~ 

Cash Over/Under _. - --­ --­ -
85005 

TOTAL (Forward to Page 9) 65005 1.373.131 1.410.000 1.380.000 1.250.000 

NET EFFECT $731,239 $515,000 $464.000 $415.000 



Exhibit I 

BUDGET VARIANCE EXPLANA TION 

IFair OlllanlzaUon: Alameda Countv Aoricuttural Fal1ll rounds 

Accounts Budgeted 2011 to Estimated 2011 Estlmated 2011 to Proposed 2012 
~1000 AdmIssions 

2011 "cluot Fohtlrn. a"endance up 8.2<'" ove' Ptlo, ya., and budoat. 

41500 CommercIal 

2011 aCh,al Fal"lme attendanct 1.10 a.Z% over 0,10' vea, and budoe" 
42000 Concon10 ns 2011 1o.ttendance all'llme recOfd. ConsorvaUv<ly budgeting 2012 

20 II .cwal F.I rtI mo alltn da nco ue 8~. OVO' e,lo, ve., and budool. COl1cesslons 10 be down. 

43000 EJ<hlblts 

Had lewe' .~~I bl1 en' tie. '!\an buda.'od 
44000 Stabling 

Fultd Ing cuI 20% fe' Slabllno aOO,.Uon on 91'120'1 Fundino cuI 20% 10' Stabllna 00.,.Uon On 911120 11 

45000 Live Horse Racing 

Budgelod Ie' I ~ days of IIvt raclno. 'oc'd 13 days. BudoeUno lor TraCk Commlslson. 10 bo down 10 201' Ind vsw I'end. 
45005 Salellite Wagering Calltomia live ,acing ""nUH d,opplng from 4&S davslw..ek 10 3&4 Budgellnplo, CA II"" ,"clnp venu~ 10 conUnu. 10 d,op Irom 4&5 dayslw••k 

davsIW••k. 10 :l'4 dayslwoe"­

46000 FaIr Attraction s 

4601)9 Interim AttraclIons 

46109 MOloriuld R.>c In9 

47000 Misc. FaiT 

2011 oclual fal"lme atlendanc. 1.10 8..2% 0.....' otlo' v.a' and budce~ Bud••'ad Parking l"cre8s. fro", $8 to $10 10' 2012 Countv fair. 

47005 Misc. Non-Fair 

481)00 Interim WIll h0" 20 12 G1'1 5<;0" I J.mbo,e•• Bu dgeU ng fOf normal Ma re n & June 
Marcil <I; Jun. 2011 Good Guvs Cor Snow. I'&lned 01.1 I. GO<>(j Ouvs Ca' Shows. 

-'9000 py Revenue Adj. 

49500 Other Ops Rev 

Incre... InCapltall ",prowmenl Q'ants from CARF & F&e. BudgetJng for deo,.O$. In Capltallm"""",m.nl grants from CARF & f&E. 

50000 Admlnlstratlon Ovo"'m. up l6.000. hlrod (Wo unbudg.,ed Temp .mploy.... 10' two e""a Budgeting fe' InCIliZlHd Employe.e: benefJtli 8xptn$~S { Med insurance up 
",onll>. and year~nd vacaUon liabilitY exponso. 1.6·~ & 18'Iollol.'lt D'v Incre>siS (+3'4) 

52000 MaInlenancelGen. Budgele<l loin lee s.l.ry oxpon•• alloc."d 10 51a blin9 did nOI occu r. Slablln~ Budgallng 10' inC/eased Employe. benellts expens.s (Med In.u,ence UP 
Ops neoort.d drop In exoon.o•. 7 ~% & 18%) Merit pay Ino'..... (+3%). 

54000 Publtclty Adv & Promotion <xpeM. up $10k, Sponso,shlp oxpen•• up S2Ok. Budg.Un9 'or Increa••d e",ployee banafll$ .xpenses ( 101 od Insu,an00 up 
Soonsorehlo revenue UP $S5k. 1.5% & 18%) Mom pay Ino'..... (+3'4) 

56000 Attend ance 0 ps Budgallng 10' Ino,.as.d expon""" /of 1OOlh Anniversary co I.brwll on 'or 20 12 
County F.l,. 

57000 Misc. Fair 

57005 Misc. Non-I'alr 

56000 Premiums 

Cosh awards up $1 Ik Budgellna Ca.h aw..ds 10 b. down 10 2011. 

63000 Ex.hlblls 

Budg.lIng 10' ino'••••d sala", expenses fo, newIv ".o'.d oosiliono. 

64000 Stabling Funding Cui 20'4 lor Stabling 0"e,.1I0n on 9111201 I. Pay<oJlaliocaUon from 
Mal nten.anee dId nol occur_ fundi n9 CUI 20"1. fo, Slabllng oparallon on 911!20 11 

65000 Horse Ra c Ing 

Sudceltd 10,15 dovs 0111..... ,aotno. nec'd 13 d."". 

65005 Satelllie Wagering Calilomia IIv. racing ....nu•• dropping lrom 4&5 dayslweek to 3&4 lludg.~ n9 lor CA live rao Ing "'nuos 10 oonUnu. 10 drop f'om 4&5 d.yslw..k 
dovslw.o"- 00 ExoanU1l <lown '03&4 QaVSIW01lk. 

68000 Fair Entel1alnmenC Budgale<l S4Ml.000 fo' Amphllhaal'••n.."aln"'enl aau; a01Uale~penu 

$410.000. 

66109 Motorized Rae In9 

66009 Interim EnCertslomenl 
Ma ",h & June 20 11 Good Guys C., Show. ral ned 01.11. O""rallng .xp.n.... Budgellng 1o, normal Maroh & Jun. Goed Gu.... Cor show s. 0 po,.ll ng 
down, ,"oanses 10 • "epon .howS ",111>0 u0 10 20 11. 

72300 Equlpmenl 

80000 PY Expense Adj. 

65000 Cash (overill ndeT) 

90000 Depr4K:lallon Down $.50,000 ~ D&ere~s@ in deC)rec:I,Uol'\. AnUelp,te $Ome .asses's fully
ElOpense deoreelatad. 

94000 Othe' Operating 
Expense 

/// /" J ./ -'" 

~-''Z/f:~ i(1A1di:hf1, l/l,d//"'7'~17~ ~ /Z;-/; -h /()/l/h/,
C~gnotu,r Oa,e f1ard President Slgna'ure I /Oa'./ l/ 
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VAVRINEK, TRINE, DAY 
& COMPANY, LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

VALUE THE DIFFERENCE 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Alameda County Agricultural Fair Association 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial pOSlllon of the Alameda County Agricultural fair 
Association (a non-profit corporation) as of December 31,2010 and 2009, and the related statements of activities and 
changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred 10 above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Alameda County Agricultural fair Association, as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
The schedule of revenues and expenses by program on page 18 and the summary schedule of revenues and expenses 
for the past five years on page 20 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Pleasanton, California 
April 8, 2011 

5000 Hopyard Road. SUite 335 Pleasanton, CA 94588 Tel 925.734.6600 Fax' 925.734.6611 VNIW.vtdcoa.com
 

J'R£SNO • LAGtiNA. HILLS. PL£ASAI';TON • RANCHO CV("AMONG,.\ • P.ALO ALTO. SACRAMENTO
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubt ful accounts 
Other assets 

Total Current Assets 

$ 

2010 

2,166,922 
1,163,095 

70,608 
3,400,625 

$ 

2009 

2,215,383 
836,562 

71,050 
3,122,995 

Property 
Capital assets not depreciated 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 

Total Land, Property and Equipment 
Total Assets $ 

1,723,012 
7,661,641 
9,384,653 

12,785,278 $ 

1,5 J1,994 
8,127,297 
9,639,291 

12,762,286 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Guarantee deposits 
Deferred revenue 
Accrued payroll 
Accrued compensated absences 
Capital lease obligation. current portion 
Funds held for others 

Total Current Liabilities 

$ 423,102 
81.656 

270 

215,172 
280,052 
151,581 

1,073 
1,152,906 

$ 396,258 
107,556 

18,259 
185,072 
259,619 
142,52) 

1,109,285 

Long Term Liabilities 
Capital lease obligation 

Total Long Term Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

1,403,130 
1,403,130 
2,556,036 

1,554,712 
1,554,712 

2,663,997 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted (Net resources operations) 
Temporarily restricted 

Subtotal 
Net resources - capital assets 

Total Net Assets 
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 

2,383,134 
16,166 

2,399,300 
7,829,942 

10,229,242 
12,785,278 $ 

2,156,079 
152 

2, J56.231 
7,942,058 

10,098,289 
12,762,286 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010 AND 2009 

OPERATlNG ACTIVITIES 
Revenues 

Fairtime 
Live racing 
Satellite wagering 
Events 
Stable/training revenue 
State grants and allocations 
Interest income 
Olher income 
ConlribUlions 
Nel assets released from restriction 

Total Revenues 

Unrestricted 
$ 6,602,506 

3,619.161 
2.104.369 
5,083,756 
2,364,547 

199,102 
10,387 
11,677 

1,410 
19,996,915 

33.0% 
18.1% 
10.5% 
25.4% 
11.8% 
\.0% 
0.1% 
0.1% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

100.0% 

Tern pora rily 
Restricted 

$ 

10.000 
(1,410) 
8.590 

$ 

2010 
Total 
6.602,506 
3.619.161 
2,104,369 
5,083,756 
2.364,547 

199,102 
10,387 
11.677 
10.000 

20,005,505 

2009 
Total 

$ 6.897,246 
3.787,476 
2,063.174 
4,798,009 
2,239,807 

187.982 
17,086 
31,024 

20,021,804 

34.3% 
18.9% 
10.3% 
24.0% 
11.2% 
0.9% 
0.1% 
0.3% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

100.0% 

Direct Expenses 
Fairtime 
Live racing 
Satellile wagering 
Events 
Slabl e/lrai ning 

Total Direct Expensl.'s 

5,949,328 
2,966,473 
1,567,164 
2,773,867 
2.537,869 

15,794,701 

30.0% 
14.8% 
7.8% 

13.9% 
12.7% 
79.2% 

5,949,328 
2.966.473 
1.567,164 
2,773,867 
2,537,869 

15,794,701 

5,851,890 
3,067,278 
1,593.410 
2,621,561 
2,575,921 

15,710,060 

33.7% 
15.3% 
8.0% 

13.1% 
12.9% 
83.0% 

Indirect Expenses 
Admin istrat ion 
Maintenance and general operalions 
Fundraising 

Total Indirect Expenses 

1,662,305 
2,423.560 

IAlO 
4,087,275 

8.3% 
12.1% 
0.0% 

20.4% 

1.662.305 
2,423.560 

1.410 
4,087,275 

1,669,959 
2,302,770 

3,972,729 

8.3% 
11.5% 
0.0% 

19.8% 

Total cost of day to day operations 19,881.976 99.6% 19,881,976 19,682,789 102.8% 

Changl.' in nel assets 
from operations 114,939 0.5% 8,590 123,529 339,015 -3.5% 

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITfES 
Change in junior livestock fund 
Change in net assets 114.939 0.5% 

7,424 
16,014 

7,424 
130,953 

(4,831) 
334,184 

0.0% 
-3.5% 

Net assets, beginning of yl.'ar 
Net assets, end of year 

10,098.137 
$ 10,213,076 

152 
$ 16,166 $ 

10,098,289 
10,229,242 

9,764,105 
$10,098.289 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements. 

3 



ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 

Cash flows provided by Operating Activities 
2010 2009 

Change in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets from operations 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 

Provision for bad debts 

([ nc rease) decrease in: 
Accounts receivable 

Other assets 

1ncrease (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable 

Guarantee deposits 

Deferred revenue 
Accrued payroll 

Accrued compensated absences 
Funds held for others 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

$ 130,953 

955,441 
50,234 

(376,767) 
442 

26,844 
(25,900) 
( 17,989) 
30,100 
20,433 

1,073 
794,864 

$ 334,184 

969,855 
77,070 

(22,442) 
9,479 

18,572 
19,370 

(32,523) 
62,408 

(96,914) 

1,339,059 

Cash flows used in Investing Activities 
Purchase of property and equipment (700,803) (329,085) 

Cash flows used in Financing Activities 
Payments on loan payable 

Payments on capital lease obligation 

Net cash used in financing activities 

(142,522) 
(142,522) 

(9,410) 
( 133,987) 
(143,397) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (48,461) 866,577 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of yur 2,215,383 1,348,806 

Cash and cash equivalents, end oryear $ 2,166,922 $ 2,215,383 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Infonnation: 
Cash paid for interest $ 83,597 $ 95,39\ 

Supplemental Disclosure afNon-cash Information: 
Contributions in kind $ 1,\82,229 $ 1,291,034 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 

INDIRECT EXPENSES DlRECT EXPENSES - PROGRAMS 
Malnlenance 
& General Satellite Stable/ 

Admm iSlrnt ion --.2J?erlu ions fundraistnl1 falnime Live Racing Wag<:nng EvcnlS Trammg Total Costs 
Sala ries and Beneli ts 

Salaries and wilgCS $ 871,642 $ U63.706 $ $ 1,207,158 $ 294,361 $ 472,399 $ 1,106.386 $ 854,277 $ 6,169.929 
Payrolllaxes 56.077 112.998 98,359 22.917 37,405 90,346 60,192 473,294 
Disuchonary benefits 57.361 267,512 59,060 112,802 154,208 152,093 803.036 
Retirement 23.435 171,600 - 15,600 15,600 40,560 53.040 319.835 
Reglilated benefits 40,405 32,422 - 89,813 13,522 25,441 53,068 41.716 296,387 
Union bendi1s - - - - 69,375 15,320 - 19,609 104,304 

Total Salaries and Benefih 1,048.920 1.948.238 - 1.469,990 400.175 678.967 1.444,568 1.180,927 8,17 1.785 

Services and Supplies 
Insurance 32,064 4,261 103.806 19.250 14.751 68,708 29,510 272,350 
ContraCI se rv Ices 15!.417 39,859 1,863,695 596,062 96.063 384,194 628,916 3.760.206 
Management e"lJenses 45,767 4.847 - 45.664 34,617 5,670 15.131 1,453 153.149 
Purse money and starter fees - - · . 1.625,000 - - - 1.625.000 
o33 money to City of Pleasanton - · - (3,624) 65,361 - - 61.737 
EqUipment rental 45,076 7,718 · 104.149 38,919 3.228 2.118 122,213 323,421 
Suppli<:s and 0 flice expense 98,215 14,048 133,205 32,191 41,268 84,352 28,696 431.975 
Ulilities 150.521 127.4 70 - 76.553 9.387 41,441 182.068 2' 9,745 807,185 
Travel and olher expenses 48,801 7.023 - 187.368 56j48 58,337 67,689 9,322 435.0158 
Interes1 expense 3.344 - - - 46.814 33.439 - 83.597 
Maintenance 8.145 245,234 - 1,050 - 14,128 1.992 240.115 510,664 
f\dvcnlslnglpromotion and public rclanons 1,280 - 1.410 1,612,567 111,225 71.629 12,168 1.810,279 
Raclllg forms, programs. digeslS, de. - - - 3.947 135,473 662 - 240.082 
Premlunl expense - - - 240.017 - - 240,017 

Total Services and Supplies 584.630 450.460 1.410 4368,074 2,523,522 694.)63 852.521 1.279,970 10,754.750 

Opcralional Expenses Defore Oepreciation 1.633.550 2,398,698 1.410 5,838.064 2,923.697 1.3 73.130 2.297,089 2,460,897 18,926.535 
Depreelallon 28,755 24,862 - 111.264 42,776 194,034 476,778 76,972 955.441 

Total Expenses $ 1,662.305 $ 2,423.560 _$ 1,410 $ 5,949,328 _tz,2§6.473 $1,567,164 $ 2,773.867 S 2,537,869 $ 19.881.976 

The accompanying notes are an inlegral pan of (hese financial statements. 

5 



ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 

INDIRECT EXPENSES DIRECT EXPENSES ­ PROGRAMS 
Mamtenance 

& General Satellite Stable! 

Adm inislIation Opvr<llions Fainime Live Racing Wagering EvenlS Training Tolal Costs 
Salaries and Benefits 

Salaries and wages $ 822.736 $ 1.282.195 $ 1,133,644 $ 276,085 $ 473.703 $ 1,(H7.020 $ 871.006 $ 5.876.389 
Payroll taxes 52.647 104.492 116.920 31.623 39,019 78.553 64,673 4R7.927 
Discret ionary henefits 76,480 270.845 52,843 - 103.790 158.162 148.705 810.825 
Retiremcm 23.490 171.600 15.600 - 15.600 40.560 53.040 319.890 
Regulatcd henefits 40.233 20,458 55.475 23,850 22,077 51.933 43,973 257.999 
Union benelig - - 3&.218 17.162 - 17,821 73.201 

Total Salaries and Benefits 1.015.586 1.849.590 1.374.482 369.776 671.351 1.346.228 1.199.218 __7_,826.231 

Sr.-viets and Supplies 
Insurance 34.577 091 105.885 8.321 16.805 68.904 28.702 267.585 
Contract services 211.749 34,720 1,833.448 545,953 102,114 379.574 651.951 3.759.509 
Management expenses 39.162 6.748 33.719 25,304 4,796 6.549 2.328 118.606 
Purse money and staner fees - - 1,700,000 - - 1.700,000 
0.33 money to City of Pleasanton - - 4,873 59.247 - - 64.120 
Equi plneot rental 49,100 3.685 J09.245 12,529 3.364 1.382 156,433 335.738 
Supplies and ofnee expense 95,058 10.197 135.695 62,360 32.628 80,300 25,025 441.263 
Utilities 151,359 114.733 85.947 886 39.168 181,440 238.440 811.973 
Travel and other expenses 27,459 10.823 133.091 159.306 110.266 60.092 2.140 503.177 
Interest expense 6,403 - - - 51.883 37,105 95,391 
Maintenance 325 216.545 610 - - 5.165 195,350 417.995 
Advertising/promotion and publie relations 3.915 - 1.692.932 113.507 46.020 6,209 1,862.583 
Racing forms, programs, digests, etc. - - - 21,279 248,526 1,030 - 270,835 
Premium expense - - 237,928 - - - 237.928 

Total Services and Supplies 619.107 401.842 4.368.500 2,654,318 714.817 827,750 1.300.369 10,886,703 

Operational F;xpense5 before Depreciation 1,634,693 2,251,432 5.742,982 3,024,094 1,386,168 2,173,978 2,499.587 18.712,934 
Depreci<Jtion 35,266 51.338 108.908 43.184 207.242 447,583 76.334 969,855 

Tolal E.~penses  $ 1.669,959 $ 2,302,770 $ 5,851,890 $ 3,067,278 $ 1,593,410 $ 2.621.561 $ 2.575,921 $ 19,682,789 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

6 



ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATJON
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Activities 

Alameda County Agricultural Fair Association (ACF or Association) is a tax-exempt. non-profit corporation, which 
was formed February 25. 1939, to promote and encourage agriculture. horticulture, mechanics, manufacturi ng. stock­
raising, and general domestic industry. The Association's purposes are as follows; to advertise and give publicity to 
Alameda County as a desirable, prosperous and advantageous place in \,;hich to settle and live. to promote the general 
welfare of the people of Alameda County, to hold annually, or at such olher intervals or times as the members may 
designate, a County or agricultural fair and to maintain and operate the AI<lmeda County Fairgrounds in a fiscally 
responsible manner. 

ACF renewed the contract with the County of Alameda, a political subdivision oCthe State of California. The 
agreement, pursuant to Government Code Section 25905, original date of September 23. 1997, appoints the 
Association as its agent for a period of five (5) years, re-commencing October I, 2002 to September 30, 2007, and 
then from October 1,2007 to September 30, 2012, to use. possess and manage the Fairgrounds and to hold and 
conduct the Alameda County Fair, on dates selected by the Association. The agreement contains a provision for 
automatic renewals for three (3) successive five (5) year tenns, unless either party provides written notice to the other 
party at least one year in advance of the tennination date of September 2012. 

Governing Board 

The Association is governed by a board of twenty-six members, of which, ten members are appointed by the Alameda 
County Board of Supervisors and sixteen members are elected by the Association. 

Accounts .Receivable 

The ACF establ ished an allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of $49,885 and $1,885 at December 31, 20 I0 
and 2009. respectively. 

Income Taxes 

The ACF is organized as a corporation exempt from Federal and State income tax under the provisions of code 
section 501 (c) (3) relating to organizations operated exclusively for the publ ic benefit. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confo011ity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make esti mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities at the reporting date and revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
materially from those estimates. Significant estimates include management's estimate of the allocation expenses to 
departments, management's estimate of the useful Iives of capital assets to compute depreciation expense. 
management's estimate of donated media advertising expense, and management's estimate of the valuation of the 
defined benefit retirement liability. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

Expenses are charged directly to program, management and general or fundraising categories based on specific 
identi fication. Indirect expenses have been allocated based on salary expenditures and other criteria. 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31,2010 AND 2009 

Property and Equipment 

For the purpose of financial reporting and to comply with accouming requirements of the Division of Fairs and 
Expositions (Department of Food and Agriculture) the ACF capitalizes all assets with a value of $5,000 with a useful 
life in excess of one year. Land, buildings, ground improvements, nnd equipment are shown as an asset at cost, net of 
accumu lated depreciation on the accompanying statement of financial position. In accordance with the tem1S of the 
management contract with Alameda County, capital assets become the property of Alameda County upon purchase; 
however, ACF has the beneficial use of all assets purchased. 

Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives of various classes of depreciable capital 
assets are as follows: buildings. 10 to 30 years; ground improvements. 5 to 15 years; equipment, 3 to 20 years. 

Recognition of Revenue 

The accounting policies applied, and procedures used by the ACF conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America and applicable to the County Fair Administrative Manual and the 
Accounting Procedures Manual. 

Accordingly, the ACF accounts are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. Thus, revenues are reported in the 
year earned rather than collected, and expenses are reported in the year incurred rather than paid. 

Accrued Compensated Absences 

Vacation benefits are granted based upon a graduated scale according to years of service. Vacation is considered
 
earned at the employee's anniversary date. Regular, full-time employees accrue vacation benefits according to the
 
following schedule:
 

First four years of continuous service: 10 days per year (80 hours)
 
Five through eleven years of continuous service: IS days per year (120 hours)
 
Twelfth year ofcontinuous service and thereafter: 20 days per year () 60 hours)
 

Full-time regular employees in assigned positions or on full-paid leave status will accrue sick leave at the rate of eight
 
(8) hours per month. Sick days can be accrued up to a maximum of 125 days, after which sick time will be exchanged 
as of December 31 for vacation time at the ratio of live (5) sick days to one (1) vacation day (5: I). Accrued sick days 
on record as of an employee's retirement date will be converted to vacation time at the 5: \ ratio and should be taken 
as additional time off prior to the retirement date. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The Associalion follows the procedures as established by the Division of Fairs and Expositions. Formal budgetary 
integration is employed as a management control device during the year. The budget is adopted on a basis consistent 
with principles established by the Division of Fairs and Expositions. 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31,2010 AND 2009 

Casb and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash on hand, cash in bank, cash in money market accounts and cash 
at County Treasury are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred (see note 10). Management does not enter 
into any long-ternl deferred advertising contracts requiring capitalization of deferred advertising expenditures. 

Purse and 0.33 Money
 

Purse money is recorded in track commissions' revenue and in a corresponding expense account (see note 3).
 

0.33 money is recorded in the respective satellite wagering and live racing revenue accounts and the payments to the 
city are recorded as expenses in the corresponding expense accounts (see note 3). 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The Association maintains cash and cash equivalents used in current operations on hand in petty cash accounts and in 
the Bank of America. Amounts in excess of current requirements are invested with the Alameda County Treasurer in 
its pooled investment account. 

Cash balances at December 31, 20 I0, and 2009. are as [oHows: 

Summary of Balances 2010 2009 

County Treasury 

Bank of America 
Petty cash 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

$ 1,147,341 

962,074 

57.507 
$ 2,J66,922 

$ 1,140,026 

1,072,750 
2,607 

$ 2,215)83 

County Treasury 

The Association is a voluntary participant in the County Treasury investment pool. The County follows the practice 
of pooling cash and investments of all funds with the County Treasurer. The Treasurer's pooled investments are 
generally carried at fair value. Adjustments to the cash balance of all participants in the pool are based on the cash 
balance at the valuation date. The Treasurer allocates interest earned on pooled investments to the appropriate funds 
based on the average daily cash balance of each fund for the quarter in which the interest was earned. 

Bank of America 

Deposits in Bank of America are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. 
During the year, the Association deposits with Bank of America may exceed the FDIC insured coverage. At 
December 31. 2010 and 2009, all amounts were covered by FDlC or collateralized by Bank of America. 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 3 ~ PURSE MONIES AND STARTER FEES 

Under the tenns of the California Horse Racing Board (CHRB) racing license, the ACF is required to budget for and 
payout purse money to winning horses. certain association fees and starter fees. The ACF negotiates separate 
agreements for purses and starter fees with each ortlle horse associations on the racing circuit. 

Northern California Off Track Wagering, Inc. (NCOTWINC) employs the pari-mutuel staff who collect the wagers 
(known as "handle"), and purses and starter fees are distributed by NCOTWINC out oflrack commissions and other 
fees earned by the ACF in collaboration with the California Authority afRacing Fairs. Estimated purse money 
included in track commissionS and recorded in the financial statements for the years ended December 31,20 I 0, and 
2009. were $1,625.000 and $1. 700,000, respectively. 

Reporting of track commission (0.33 money) 

The 0.33 of 1% of handle is mandated by state Jaw to be distributed by the Fair Board 10 the local city, county or state. 
The 0.33 money included in track commissions and recorded in the financial statements was $71.737 for 2010, and 
$64,120 for 2009. 

NOTE 4 - SUMMARY OF CAPITAL ASSETS 

General capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the budgetary funds at the time of purchase. Such assets are 
capitalized at cost as described in Note I. Capital asset activity for 2010 and 2009 is as follows: 

Beginning Disposalsl Ending 
2010 Balance Additions Transrers Adjustments Balance 

Land $ 1,375,291 $ $ $ $ 1.375.291 
Work in process 136,703 489.950 278.932 347.721 

Capital assets not depreciated 1,511,994 489,950 278,932 1.723,012 
Buildings 16,541,085 178,279 (1,093) 16,718,271 
Ground Improvements 9.277.049 38,232 236 9.315517 
Equipment 8,582,3t9 273.840 9,519 686 8,847,326 

Capital assets being depreciated 34.400,453 490,351 9,519 07!) 34.881.114 
Subtotal 35,912.447 980,301 288.451 (171) 36,604,126 

Less Accumulated depreciation 
Buildings 14,795,056 254,836 (23 I) 15,049,661 
Ground Improvements 6,97 1,259 267,758 7239.017 
Equipment 4,506.841 432,847 9.519 626 4,930.795 

Subtotal 26.273,156 955,441 9.519 395 27.219.473 
Capital Assets. nel $ 9,639,291 $ 24,860 $ 278,932 $ (566) $ 9.384,653 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRlCULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 

Beginning Disposals! Ending 
2009 Balance Additions Transfers Balance 

Land $ 1.375,291 $ $ $ 1,375.291 
Work in process 140,336 102,066 105,699 136,703 

Capital assets not depreciated 1,515,627 102,066 105,699 1,511,994 

Buildings 16,443,429 97,656 16,541,085 

Ground Improvements 9,145,634 131,415 9,277,049 

Equipment 8,503,660 99,759 21,100 8,582,319 

Capital assets being depreciated 34,092,723 328,830 21, 100 34,400.453 

Subtotal 35,608,350 430,896 126,799 35,912,447 
Less Accumulated depreciation 

Buildings 14,542,524 252,532 14,795,056 

Ground Improvements 6,720,582 250,677 6,971,259 

Eq ui pment 4,065,183 462,758 21,lOO 4,506,841 

Subtotal 25,328,289 965,967 21,100 26,273,156
 
Capital Assets, net $ 10,280,061 $ (535,071) $ 105,699 $ 9,639,291
 

Pursuant to an agreement with the County of Alameda, all personal property purchased by the Association, pursuant 
to Section 4.04.070 of the Alameda County Administration Code, shall automatically become County property on the 
date of acquisition. However. the Association has beneficial use of all assets purchased. Jn the event that the 
agreement is canceled or otherwise terminated in any manner, title to the property shall automatically vest in the 
County. The ACF is responsible for maintaining insurance coverage on all capital assets. 

Depreciation expense charged [0 operations was $955,441 for 2010 and $969,855 for 2009, 

The cost and accumulated depreciation ora capital lease included in equipment was $4,738,862 and 
$1.698,092 at December 3 L 2010, and $4,738,862 and $1,461,149 at December 31,2009. Amortization of capital 
lease assets is included in depreciation expense. 

NOTE 5 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

The Associatioo entered into a sub-lease agreement for photovoltaic equipment on March 4, 2003, with California 
Construction Authority (CCA), who is a party to a lease agreement for equipment from PFG Energy Capital. 
Payment is due monthly to CCA of$19,656 bearing interest at a rate of6.6% starting November 1,2003. The final 
payment is due on March 1,2019. 

2010 2009 
Balance, January 1 $ 1.697,233 $ 1,831,220 
Additions 

Payments 142,522 133,987 
Balance, December 31 $ 1,554,711 $ 1,697,233 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31,2010 AND 2009 

Future minimum lease payments under the capital lease through March 2019 are as follows: 

Year Ending Lease 

December 31, Payment 

2011 $ 235,874 

2012 235,874 

2013 235,874 

2014 235,874 

2015 235,874 

Thereafter 736,731 

Total future minimum lease payments 1,916,101 

Less amount representing interest 361,390 

Capital lease obligation 1,554.711 
Less current portion 151,581 

Long-term portion $ 1.403,130 

NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

In a letter dated February 22, 1987, the Internal Revenue Service determined the plan to be a "qualified plan" under 
the lnternal Revenue Code. This determination was applicable to amendments adopted on October 22,1985, but was 
subject to the adoption of proposed amendments submitted in a letter dated February 3, 1987. 

General Plan Information 

Tile following descriptions are extracts from the Summary Plan Description prepared by Ameritas Life insurance 
Corporation. A copy of the plan is on file at the employer's office and may be read by participants, their 
beneficiaries, or their legal representatives at any reasonable time. 

ACF Pension Plan is the name of the Plan. The amended and restated provisions of the Plan became effective on 
January 1, 1997. The Plan's records are maintained on a twelve-month period of time. Contributions made to the 
Plan will be held and invested by the trustee of the Plan. The Plan and Trust shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of California. The ACF is the Plan's administrator. Employees will be eligible to participate in the Plan if they 
have completed a six-month period of service. At this time, employees will become a participant. Leased employees 
are not eligible to participate in the Plan. 

Funding Policy 

In order to participate, employees must agree to contribute 4.5% of their compensation up to $7,800, plus 7.5% of 
their compensation in excess of$7,800. The employer contributes an amount necessary to provide the benefits under 
the pIan based upon the recomme od at ions 0 f period ic actuari aI va Iuat ions. 

Benefits provided under this plan are not insured by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (PBGC). [n a lener 
dated June 4, 1990, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (paGC) determined that the plan is excluded from the 
coverage under Title IV of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERlSA). The funding 
recommendations prepared and summarized in this analysis are based on our understanding that the Retirement Plan 
is classified as a Governmental Plan. Therefore. the minimum funding requirements of [RC 412 have not been 
reflected or recognized. The funding recommendations are based on accepted actuarial practices for Governmental 
Plans. 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31,2010 AND 2009 

Annua) Pension Cost 

For the year ended December 31,2010, the nornlal employer cost was $335,170, and for 2009 \vas $352,362. 
Contributions of$319,835 and $)19,890 were made to the Plan during 20 I0 and 2009, respectively. 

The Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method was used to determine annual plan costs. 

The value of plan assets is based on the conlract value. The actual assumptions include (a) an inves1ment rate of 
return of7.0% compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases at an annual rate of 4.5% compounded annually 
following the valuation date. [n 20[0 and 2009, the mortality rates are based on the RP-2000 Projected Mortality 
Tables. The actual investment retum for the twelve months ended December 31,20 I0 and 2009. was 4.52% and 
4.75%, respectively. 

Funded Status of the Plan 

Over (Under) Funded Accrued Liability for December 31, 2010 is as follows: 

Actuarial Actuarial Annual Deficit 
Valuation Value of Accrued (Deficit) Funded Covered Assets as a 

Date Assets Liability Assets Ratio Payroll % of Payroll 

January I, 20 I ) $ 5,746,533 $ 6,334,447 $ (587,914) 91% $ 2,513.283 -23.4% 

January I, 20) 0 $ 5,113,875 $ 5,781,827 $ (667,952) 88% $ 2542,865 ~26.3% 

January I, 2009 $ 4,537,806 $ 5,048.329 $ (510,523) 90% $ 2,102,799 -24.3% 

Financial Status is as follows: 

January \, January I, January I, 
2011 2010 2009 

Actuarial present value of vested accrued benefits $ 4.648,233 $ 4,086,369 $ 3,554,470 

Actuarial present value afnon-vested accrued benefits 141,997 125,547 71,492 

Total actuarial value of accrued benefits $ 4,790,230 $ 4,211,916 $ 3.625,962 

Actuarial value of assets $ 5,746,533 $ 5,113,875 $ 4,537.806 

Funded Ratio: 
Vested accrued benefits 124% 125% 128% 
Total accrued benefits 120% 121% 125% 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 7 - CONCENTRATIONS IN REVENUE 

The ability of the ACF to maintain revenue levels is dependent on consumer discretionary spending, a continuing 
favorable economic climate for the horse racing industry, and competitiveness in the faciliry rental business. 

Levels of major revenues by percentage are as follows: 

2010 2009 
Fairtime 33.0% 34.3% 
Live racing 18.1% 18.9% 
Satellite wagering 10.5% 10.3% 
Events 25.4% 24.0% 
Stable/training revenue 11.8% 11.2% 
State grants and allocations 1.0% 0.9% 
Interest income 0.1% 0.1% 
Other income 0.1% 0.3% 

Unforeseen circumstances such as, but not limited to, inclement weather, changes in government rules and 
regulations, and Indian Gaming which has increased competition for consumer market share from the entertainment 
and leisure industry, could adversely affect the financial situation of the Association in the future. 

NOTE 8 - PREMIUM FUND 

The Premium Fund is used to account for revenues and expenses related to Fair Premium awards. 

The following is a summary of the activity of the fund during 2010, and 2009. 

2010 2009 
Beginning January I, $ $ 

Premiums deposited 221,610 217,949 
Premiums paid (221,610) (217,949) 

Ba lance Decem ber 3 1, $ $ 

NOTE 9 - NET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of: 

2010 2009 

Heritage Monument Project $ 8,590 $ 
Junior Livestock Fund 7,576 152 
Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 16,166 $ 152 

===== 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 10 - DONATED MATERIALS, SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT 

Donated materials and services are reOected as fair-time revenue and donated equipment is retlected as other income 
in the accompanying financial statements al their estimated fair values as of the date of donation. Donated services 
are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized 
skills, are perfomled by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased. Media advertising and 
sponsorships received as donated in-kind services had a fair value of $1,182,229 in 20 10, and $1,291,034 in 2009. 

The Association utilizes and depends on the services of vol un leers to perform a variety of casks that assist the 
Association with specific programs. The value of this contributed time is not reflected in these financial statements 
since the services did not require specialized skills and it was not susceptible to objective measurement. All 
contributions are considered to be unrestricted unless specifically restricted by the donor. 

NOTE 1J - LOCAL ECONOMIC BENEFITS 

The following spending analysis is provided to show how the fairground supports employment CInd small business 
services through its operations. 

2010 2009 
Salaries and benefits $ 8,171,785 $ 7,826,231 
Services and supplies 9,068,013 9,122,583 
City tax paid from racing handle 0.33 money 61,737 64.120 

From operations 17.301,535 17,012,934 
Capital expenditures 700,803 430,896 

$ 18,002,338 =$~=1=7=,4=4=3,=83=O= 

The Association employs approximately 86 full-time and 64 part-lime people year round and during the 17 days of 
fair-time the number employed increases to approximately 850. 

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS 

The Association leases certain office equipment under non-cancelable operating leases. Future minimum rental 
pay ments under operat ing leases al Decem ber 3I. 20 I 0, are: 

Year Ending Rental 
December 3 I, Payment 

2011 $ 14.234 
2012 5,487 
Total $ 19,721 

Total rent expense under operating leases was $53,256 in 2010 and $58,116 in 2009. No renewal options are 
provided for in the leases; however. in the normal course of business, operating leases are generally renewed or 
replaced by other leases. 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31,2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 13 - ESTIMATED FAIR VALUES 

Accounting standards defines fair value and establish a framework for measuring fair value under U.S. GAAP, and 
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 app! ies whenever olher accounting pronouncements 
require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. 

Under SFAS \ 57, fair value is a market-based measurement and defined as the price that would be received for selling 
an asset or paid for transferring a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The transaction to selllhe asset or transfer the liability is a hypothetical tTansaction at the measurement date, 
considered from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liabi lity. In general, the 
transaction price wi II equal the exit price and, therefore, represents the fair value of the asset or liabi Iity at initial 
recognition. In determining whether a transaction price represents the fair value of the asset or liability at initial 
recognition, each reporting entity is required to consider factors specific to the asset or liability, the principal or most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability, and market participants with whom the entity would lransact in that 
market. To increase consistency and comparabilily in fair value measures. the fair value hierarchy prioritizes the 
inputs used in valuation techniques to measure fair value into three broad levels: 

Level I - quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, 
Level 2 - directly or indirectly observable inputs other than quoted market prices, and 
Level 3 - unobservable inputs. 

A financial instrument's categorization Within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that IS 
significant to the fair value measurement. The Association does not have any financial instruments that are measured 
at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. 

Fair Value Summary Tables 

The following tables summarize the carrying value and estimated fair values of the financial instruments as of 
December 31, 20 I0: 

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Cash equivalents - County Cash $ $ $ 1,147,341 $ 1,147,34 I 

Beginning of year $ 1,140,026 
Additions 7,315 
Deductions 
End of Year $ 1,147,341 

NOTE 14-SUBSEQUENTEVENTS 

The Association's management has evaluated events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition or 
disclosure in the financial statements from the statement of position date through April 8, 20 I I, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be Issued. Management has determined that there were no subsequent events or 
transactions that would have a material impact on the current year financial statements 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY PROGRAM 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 

Fairtiltle 
Revenues 

Admissions and parking 
Commercial space 
Concessions 
Exhibits 
Other fairtime revenues 

Total Fairtime Revenues 

Expenses 
Marketing and promotion 
Attendance operations 
Premium expense 
Exhibits expense 
Fair entertainment 
Depreciation 

Total Fairtime Expenses 

Contribution from Fairtime Revenues 

Satellite Wageri"g 
Revenues 

Admissions 
Track commissions 
Program sales, forms, digests, etc. 
Food and beverage concessions 
Lonery 
Other revenue 

Total Satellite Wagering Revenue-s 

Expenses 
Salaries and benefits 
Contracl services 
Racing fom)s. programs. digests, elc. 
Advertising/promotion and public relations 
0.33 money to City of Pleasanton
 
Other expenses (excluding capital exp)
 
Depreciation
 

Total Satellite Wagering Expenses 

Contribution from Satellite W:l.gering Revenues 

2010 

$ 2,354.713 
657,615 

1.920.499 
89,215 

1,580,464 

6.602,506 

2.133.643 
1.741,226 

240,017 
637,672 

1,085.506 
111.264 

5,949,328 

$ 653,178 

$ 402,789 
1.171.424 

276,749 
37,681 
70,924 

144,802 

2, I04,369 

678,967 
96,063 

235,473 
71,629 
65,361 

225.637 
194,034 

1,567.164 

$ 537,205 

Percent of
 
Depanment
 

Total
 

35.7% 
10.0% 
29.1% 

1.4% 
23.8% 

100.0% 

32.3% 
26.4% 

3.6% 
9.7% 

16.4% 
1.7% 

90.1% 

9.9% 

19.0% 
55.7% 
13.2% 

1.8% 
3.4% 
6.9% 

100.0% 

32.2% 
4.6% 

11.2% 
3.4% 
3,1% 

10.7% 
9.2% 

74.4% 

25.6% 

2009 

Percent of 
Departmenl 

Total 

$ 2.502.409 
640,610 

2.078.024 
88,609 

1,587,594 

6,897,246 

363% 
9.3% 

30.1% 
1.3% 

23.0% 

100.0% 

2,145,124 
1,667.032 

237,928 
599.049 

1,093.849 
108,908 

31.1% 
24.2% 

3.4% 
8.7% 

15.9% 
1.6% 

5,851,890 84.9% 

$ 1,045,356 15.1% 

444,909 
1,129.489 

293,524 
40,501 
89,300 
65,451 

2,063,174 

21.6% 
54.7% 
14.2% 
2.0% 
4.3% 
3.2% 

100.0% 

671.351 
102,1\4 
248.526 

46.020 
59,247 

258,910 
207,242 

1.593.410 

32.5% 
4.9% 

12.0% 
2.2% 
2.9% 

12.5% 
10.0% 

77.0% 

$ 469,764 23.0% 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION
 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY PROGRAM (CONTINUED)
 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
 

2010 
Live Horse Racing (Foirtime) 
Revenues 

Admissions and parking $ 50.336 
Track commissions 3,334.392 
Program and tip sheet sales 104,808 
Food and beverage 114,483 
Miscellaneous racing reven ue 15,142 

Toul Live Racing Revenues 3,619,161 

Expenses 
Salaries and benefits 400,175 
Pari-mutuel 
Purse money and starters fees 1.625.000 
Insurance 19,250 
Contract services 596,062 
Equipment rental 38,919 
0,33 money paid to City of Pleasanton (3,624) 
Marketing promotion and other 247,915 
Depreciation 42.776 

Total Live Racing Expenses 2,966,473 

Contribution from Live Racing Revenues $ 652,688 

Evellts 
Revenues 

Parking $ 1,029.400 
Building and equipment rental 3,122,166 
Food and beverage concessions 452.631 
Tenant revenues 269.620 
Antenna site rent 173.484 
cnherevent revenue 36.455 

Total Events Revenues 5,083,756 

Expenses 
Salaries and benefits 1.444,568 
Insurance 68,708 
Security 110.355 
Parking 15.876 
Utilities 182.068 
Contract services 188.364 
Other event expenses 287,150 
Depreciation 476,778 

Total Evenls Expens('s 2,773,867 

Contribution from E,'enls Rl'veoues $ 2,309,889 

Percent of
 
Department
 

Total
 

1.4% 
92.0% 

2.9% 
3.2% 
0.5% 

100.0% 

11.1% 
0.0% 

44.9% 
0.5% 

16.5% 
1.l% 

-0.1% 
6.9% 
1.2% 

82.1% 

17.9% 

20.3% 
61.4% 

8.9% 
5.3% 
3.4% 
0.7% 

100.0% 

28.4% 
1.4% 
2.2'>;" 
0.3% 
3.6% 
3.7% 
5.6% 
9.4% 

54.6% 

45.4% 

Percent of 
Department 

2009 Total 

$ 77,063 2.0% 
3.466.731 91.5% 

96,011 2.5% 
134,022 3.5% 
13.649 0,5% 

3,787,476 100.0% 

369.776 9.8% 
0.0% 

1,700,000 44.9% 
8,32J 0.2% 

545,953 14.4% 
12,529 0.3% 
4,873 0.1% 

382,642 10.1% 
43,184 1.1% 

3,067,278 80.9% 

$ 720,198 19.1% 

$ 943.681 19.8% 
2.946.698 61.4% 

421.887 8.8% 
287.605 6.0% 
159.824 3.3% 
38,314 0.7% 

4,798,009 100.0% 

1,346,228 28.1% 
68,904 1.4% 

109,736 2.3% 
13,361 0.3% 

181.440 3.8% 
216.280 4.5% 
238.029 5.0% 
447,583 9.3% 

2,621.561 54.7% 

$ 2.176,448 453% 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL FAIR ASSOCIATION 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR THE PAST 
FIVE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010 

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 

Revenues 

Fairtime $ 6,602,506 $ 6,897,246 $ 6,460,863 $ 6,360,915 $ 6,309,581 

Live racing 3.619,161 3.787,476 3.495.214 3.619.750 3,450.033 

Salel1ite wagering 2.104.369 2.063.174 2.354.066 2.615.955 2.535.081 

Events 5.083.756 4,798,009 4.997.J 99 5.031.453 4.255.082 

SWble/tr<lini ng revenue 2.364.547 2.239.807 1.014.874 953.976 488.217 

Slate grants and allocations 199.102 187,982 142.434 59.800 304.453 

(nlerest income 10.387 17.086 45.005 90,466 79.209 

Other 11,677 31,024 183,707 95,630 45.682 

Net assets released from restrict ion 1,410 

Total Revenues 19,996,915 20.021,804 18,693,362 18,827,945 17,467,338 

Direct Expenses 

Fllirtime 5.949.328 5.851,890 6,273,146 6.272,460 6.306.243 

Live racing 2.966.473 3.067,278 2.643,499 2,592,200 2.618,385 

Satellitc wagcring 1.567.164 1.593.4 JO 1.585,888 1.554,862 1.525.965 

Evenls 2.773,867 2,621.561 2.591.452 2,575,345 2,468,050 

St<lble/trJining 2,537.869 2.575,921 1.491,420 1.170.586 868.505 

Total Direct Expenses 15,794,701 J5,710,060 14,585,405 14.165,453 13,787,148 

Indirect Expenses 

Admini slrot ion 1.662.305 1.669.959 1.104.139 1.969.536 1.926.401 

Maintenance and general operations 2,423,560 2,302,770 2,619.588 2.632.133 2.477.080 

Fundraising 1.410 

Total Indirect Expeuses 4,087,275 3.972,729 4,723,727 4,601,669 4,403,481 

Total cost of day to day operations 19.881.976 19.682.789 19,309,132 18.767.122 18,190,629 

Increase (decrease) in un restricted 

nel assclS 114,939 339.015 (615.770) 60,823 (723.291) 

Change in tcmpororily restricted net assets 16,014 (4.83 I) (4,784) (8,265) (l4.208) 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 130.953 334.184 (620.554) 52.558 (737.499) 

Net assets. January J 10.098,289 9,764,105 10,384.659 10.332.101 11,069.600 

Net assets. December 31 $ 10.229.242 $ 10.098.289 $ 9,764.105 $ 10.384.659 $ 10.332.101 
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